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THE RHODE ISLANDER

AMICA RUSH HOUR 
THIS FRIDAY! MAY 5 • 6:30PM 
TACO CLASSICAL  
THIS SATURDAY! MAY 6 • 8:00PM
THE VETS, AVENUE OF THE ARTS, PROVIDENCE

SATURDAY, JUNE 3 • 5:00PM 
THE VETS, AVENUE OF THE ARTS, PROVIDENCE

Leonard Slatkin, conductor  
Renée Fleming, soprano

2023 ANNUAL  
GALA CONCERT  

WITHVERDI 
REQUIEM TICKETS START AT $15

Tania Miller, conductor  
Providence Singers, Christine Noel, Artistic Director 
Laquita Mitchell, soprano  •  Susan Platts, mezzo-soprano      
David Pomeroy, tenor  •  Kevin Deas, bass  

VERDI Requiem

ORDER YOUR TICKETS TODAY! 401.248.7000 • BUY.RIPHIL.ORG/PROJO23 Bring your group and save! O
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TICKETS START AT $35!

NARRAGANSETT — On a hillside
overlooking Pettaquamscutt Cove, the
shell of a two-story stable with stone
walls stands as one of the last vestiges
of the once-sprawling estate of Gov.
William Sprague.

Sprague and his wife, Kate Chase
Sprague, purchased the land on the
shores of the cove in the 1860s and cre-
ated Canonchet Farm, named for the
sachem of the Narragansetts — the
tribe that had summered there for
thousands of years.

The Spragues built a 64-room man-
sion on the high ground, but a fire de-
stroyed it in 1909. After the former gov-
ernor died, relatives farmed the land
before selling some lots for houses.
When new owners planned to build a
development on the property, the
Town of Narragansett bought 174 acres
in 1973 and later partnered with the
Friends of Canonchet Farm, a nonprof-
it group, to create a public preserve.

Over the years, volunteers have en-
hanced a pleasant, easy-to-walk trail
that winds through second-growth
forests, pastureland and wetlands,
with views of the Narrow River.

Sights to see: Vernal pools,
marshes, farm animals 
and ospreys

The 1.3-mile path is perfect for par-
ents and grandparents to explain to
youngsters the land’s rich history and
point out vernal pools, chestnut trees,
and freshwater and saltwater marsh-
es. There are also farm animals to see
and, if you’re lucky, an osprey soaring
over the meadows.

I set out to explore the public sanc-
tuary from the Narragansett Commu-
nity Center and walked northeast on a
wide path marked with orange dia-
monds that had been cleared of thick,
green bull briar vines. White bird-
houses hung from the trees.

Not far from the start, a short nature
loop trail opens on the left, where
teachers from a nearby grammar
school sometimes give science les-
sons. To the west, some raised ground
is visible that once supported the
tracks of a streetcar line that connect-
ed East Greenwich to Narragansett,
Wakefield and Peace Dale. It opened in 

Walking Rhode Island
John Kostrzewa 

Guest columnist

Former
governor’s
estate has
plenty to teach
Scenic Canonchet Farm
is a nature classroom,
great for family walks

A two-story, stone-sided stable at
Canonchet Farm burned in 1968.
JOHN KOSTRZEWA

See WALKING, Page 10B

T
he artwork of Stuart Powers is knowingly kitschy, teasingly tacky, sublimely

schlocky and lovingly lowbrow. And it’s a hell of a lot of fun. h The East Provi-

dence artist buys original paintings and reproductions at flea markets, yard sales

and from the bins at places such as Savers and the Salvation Army. He then en-

gages in “overpainting,” the practice of altering a preexisting work, by inserting (and some-

times subtracting) visual elements, subverting the intention of the original maker and in-

fusing the work with new meaning.

This method of working has existed for decades
and is often dismissed as naive, amateurish or just
distasteful. But it should be noted that a number of
celebrated artists, including English street artist
Banksy and German painter Gerhard Richter, have
indulged in the practice.

In “Stu (Ruins) Art: Discarded Work Gets a New
Life,” on display at the HeARTspot Art Center and
Gallery in East Providence, Powers reimagines
sleepy fishing villages, bucolic landscapes and café
sidewalks as stomping grounds for kaiju, dinosaurs
and six-armed, antennaed, pale green creatures.

Being respectful of the efforts of the original art-
ists, Powers always honors them by leaving in their
signatures or initials if they appear on the surface of
the work.

A recurrent character appears in the vast major-
ity of the paintings. It is a tiny teddy bear in a blue-
and-white striped shirt. Powers created the bear as 

A tidal wave engulfs Providence in this untitled piece by Stuart Powers, part of the exhibit “Stu (Ruins) Art: Discarded
Work Gets a New Life,” at the HeARTspot Art Center and Gallery in East Providence. DON WILKINSON PHOTOS/SPECIAL TO

PROVIDENCE JOURNAL

From trash to
quirky treasure

Discarded art is whimsically reinvented 
in exhibit by E. Providence’s Stuart Powers

Kathleen Hill Special to Providence Journal | USA TODAY NETWORK

A teddy bear in striped shirt – a recurring
character in Powers’ paintings, inspired by his
young grandson – is carried off by a pterodactyl.See TREASURE, Page 10B
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1899 and closed in 1922.
The path then crosses several wooden bog bridges

over wetlands and shallow streams covered with
bright green skunk cabbage. A sign explains the im-
portance of vernal pools, where wood frogs, spotted
salamanders and fairy shrimp come to life every
spring.

Farther ahead, the path crosses a sturdy, wooden
bridge. If you look below, you can see a stone slab
bridge built to carry heavy farm wagons over Crooked
Brook, which flows across the property and empties
into Pettaquamscutt Cove.

Walkers also pass chestnut trees, swamp white
oaks and black oaks along the path that runs by two
stone walls.

Working farm is part 
of the South County Museum

Rising on a gentle incline, the trail cuts behind
sheds and a barn, where chickens clucked and sheep
grazed. The working farm is part of the South County
Museum. The town owns the land there and leases it to
the museum. Just uphill to the right is a tall pole with
an osprey nest. One of the fish hawks flew away as I
approached.

The trail breaks to the left and crosses an area in
front of a stone wall where volunteers have cleared out
invasive plants such as privet, multiflora rose, bitter-
sweet and barberry. They also have planted a dozen
red oak, hophornbeam and trident maple saplings to
keep out the non-native invasive plants.

When volunteers were clearing the walls, they
found an old well that may have been part of the
Spragues’ summer mansion. The house is gone now, as
is a water system that 19th-century maps show includ-
ed a windmill and tank probably built to water the live-
stock.

The path then runs northeast and is lined with a
stone wall on the right and a low retaining wall on the
left that holds the ground in place above lowlands that
spread toward the west.

As the trail bends north, there are views of lines of
stone walls that probably served to corral the livestock
that grazed in the pastures. Second-growth forests
now cover the land.

A side trail opens on the left and forms a loop that
runs to the edge of the salt marsh at the southern edge
of the Pettaquamscutt (Narrow) River, also known as
Pettaquamscutt Cove. The wide openings in the stone
walls gave wagons access to salt marsh hay that was
cut to feed cattle. 

Nearby attraction: John H. Chafee 
National Wildlife Refuge

The trail then passes the John H. Chafee National
Wildlife Refuge on the left and runs through a sassa-
fras grove before turning south by a tilted granite post
with an iron ring that may have been a hitching post or
a gate. Another post lies on the ground.

There’s a stand of gray and white birch trees on the

left and paths that open through a stone wall and run
to Littleneck Pond.

The Spragues once ran a quarry in the area, and the
granite stones may have been used for walls, roads and
signposts on the property. A few rough-cut blocks are
still visible.

The trail meanders past a stand of Norway spruce
trees and a huge split erratic, a boulder left from the Ice
Age. After passing some large beech trees, the path
reaches a parking lot and Anne Hoxie Lane, which
leads to Route 1A. Lake Canonchet is to the south, and
Narragansett Town Beach is visible to the east. 

I took a path west through a field and after a short
distance reached the yellow-painted South County
Museum. Across from the museum are the ruins of the
two-story stable, which has windows, an arched en-
trance, a stone floor and a fireplace. The roof is gone.

Former Governor Sprague built the round stone and
granite stable in 1900. The bottom level included space
for 12 horses, two box stalls and a carriage room. The
second story had quarters for footmen, coachmen and
grooms, as well as a harness and tack room and stor-
age for hay and grain.

After Sprague died in 1915, horse breeders and a rid-
ing school used the stables before they burned in 1968.

What is the geological feature
known as a ‘roche moutonnee?’

From the stables, I walked along a road by several
buildings and a unique granite outcropping called a
roche moutonnee, which means “rock sheep,” because
the sloping surface resembles a sheep with its back to
the wind. 

Just down the road is the walled Robinson Burial

Ground. The Robinson family farmed the surrounding
land that was acquired by Colonial settlers as part of
the Pettaquamscutt Purchase (1658-1659) from the In-
digenous people who lived there.

William Robinson (1694-1751), deputy governor of
the Colony of Rhode Island and Providence Planta-
tions, owned more than 3,000 acres in the Point Judith
area, including Canonchet Farm.

The remains of many prominent members of the
Robinson family were moved to the Riverside Ceme-
tery in Wakefield in the late 1800s.

After exploring the graveyard, I walked along a
fence by the osprey nest to the trail I had started out on
and returned to where I’d begun after walking for 90
minutes. 

The Friends of Canonchet Farm have more plans for
the property, including creating paths and a park
around the ponds on the east side of the land.

The enhancements will make an already interesting
public preserve only better.

The Walking Rhode Island column runs every other
Sunday. John Kostrzewa, a former assistant manag-
ing editor/business at The Providence Journal, wel-
comes email at johnekostrzewa@gmail.com.

A bridge crosses Crooked Brook, which flows across the property and empties
into Pettaquamscutt Cove. JOHN KOSTRZEWA 

Among those interred in the Robinson Burial Ground at Canonchet Farm are
Benjamin Robinson, who died in 1830 at age 66, and his wife, Elizabeth, who died
in 1855 at age 86. FRIEDA SQUIRES/THE PROVIDENCE JOURNAL FILE

A granite post with an iron ring may have been a
hitching post or part of a gate. JOHN KOSTRZEWA

A tall pole is topped with an osprey nest near sheds
for farm animals at Canonchet Farm. JOHN KOSTRZEWA

If you go ...
Access: Off Route 1A, take Mumford Road to the
trailhead next to the Narragansett Community
Center.

Parking: Available at a paved lot.

Dogs: Allowed but must be leashed.

Difficulty: Easy, on wide, flat paths.

Trail Tip
John Kostrzewa will discuss Walking Rhode
Island, his hiking column, on May 6 at 10 a.m. at
the South County Museum, 115 Strathmore St.,
Narragansett, followed by a guided walk on the
trails through Canonchet Farm.

Register at canonchet.org.

Walking
Continued from Page 7B

a nod to his young grandson, who was having anxiety
nightmares, and he advised the boy to imagine giving
an ice cream cone to the dream monsters, making
peace with the beast, as a coping mechanism.

All of the work in the exhibition is untitled, and vir-
tually all of them tap a pop culture sensibility.

There is a painting of three women in long dresses
and wide-brimmed hats, one holding a sunbrella, with
seagulls in the distance. The original artist did it in an
impressionist style, using a palette knife, much like
Monet or Cezanne.

Powers, utilizing the same painting tool, pops a
one-eyed purple people-eater with a set of ferocious
fangs and a probing squid-like tentacle into the water,
staring back at the ladies just a few feet away. Behind
them, the tiny bear offers up an ice cream cone.

In a black-and-white city painting, of what was
likely started as a peaceful moment of strollers on a
quiet boulevard, Powers has inserted an old-school
sci-fi threat, the title character from the 1958 movie
“Attack of the 50 Foot Woman.” The ice cream cone
teddy bear tries to befriend her.

In yet another city, a giant pterosaur, perhaps the
Japanese movie monster Rodan, engulfs a multistory
building. 

The teddy bear offers an ice cream again, as he does
often, whether he’s trying to placate the screaming fig-
ure from that famed Edvard Munch painting, a giant

barbarian and tentacled monster behind an indifferent
boy, two battling Things (one from a John Carpenter
movie, the other from Marvel Comics’ Fantastic Four)
and even a tidal wave that threatens to wash away the
city of Providence.

The teddy bear doesn’t always succeed in his pacifi-
cation efforts. In another painting, he is in the grip of a
flying pink pterodactyl, as goofy-looking as Pterri from
“Pee-wee’s Playhouse.” In another work, the corners of
the frame still wrapped in the yellowed paper that was
on it in the thrift store, a too-cute little white dog has
sprouted devil horns, and the familiar blue-and-white
striped shirt dangles from his mouth.

“Overpainting” in this type of context is defined as
changing a picture by painting additional parts over
the original surface. Some refer to this as “pentimen-
to,” the Italian word for repentance, from the verb
“pentirsi,” to repent. 

But there is no need to repent. Just enjoy.

“Stu (Ruins) Art: Discarded Work Gets a New Life” is
on display through May 10 at the HeARTspot Art Center
and Gallery, 1970 Pawtucket Ave., East Providence.
Open Saturdays from noon to 4 p.m., and by appoint-
ment at (401) 383-7577.

Treasure
Continued from Page 7B

A sea monster approaches in this Powers painting,
done in the style of the Impressionists.

The title character of the sci-fi classic “Attack of the
50 Foot Woman” menaces a quiet boulevard. DON

WILKINSON PHOTOS/SPECIAL TO PROVIDENCE JOURNAL


